
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of University City due to 
the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, in compliance with St. 
Louis County’s public health order mask are required.   
To provide for social distancing during Council meetings in-person public attendance will be limited to the first 25 
people. 
 
Citizen may also observe the Meeting via Live Stream on YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 

A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATION 
None 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. February 14, 2022 – Regular Session Minutes  

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

None 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
None 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  Please complete and place the 
form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
Citizen may provide written comments ahead of the meeting; they must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of 
the meeting.  Comments may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 
Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will 
be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. A name and address 
must be provided.  Please also note if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not 
provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. none 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Collective Bargaining Agreement - Eastern Missouri Coalition of Police Fraternal Order of Police Lodge 15 
2. EDRST Grant - UCFD/U City High School - EMT Academy - Rollover Funds 
3. Relocation Assistance – (O’Hara) 
4. Relocation Assistance – (Perry) 
5. 8008-8020 Olive Easement – Vacate, Release and Terminate (Six Fortune, LLC) 

 
K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Determination of a Member’s Eligibility on the Park Commission 
2. Emergency Approval of alley cave-in repair between 6500 blocks of Crest Ave and Etzel Ave. 
3. Conditional Use Permit – 8351 Olive Boulevard. The proposed use is for a warehouse that would exceed 

50% of the total gross floor area of the premises. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, February 28, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Bill 9452 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VII OF THE TRAFFIC CODE, TO REVISE 

TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. (Golf Course Dr. at Alanson Dr.). 
 

2. Bill 9453 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A TRACT 
OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS “7579 OLIVE BOULEVARD”.  (Quick Trip Store) 
 

M. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions 
 
Bills 

1. Bill 9454 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 34-22 THEREOF, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, 
THEREBY AMENDING SAID MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 
1004 PENNSYLVANIA BOULEVARD TO “HR” HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATON (continue if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Posted 25th day of February 2022. 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
 

 

 

 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, February 14, 
2022, via videoconference, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at  6:31 p.m. 

 

B. ROLL CALL  
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

 
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Director of Finance, Keith Cole.   
 
Mayor Crow stated he would like to pass along Council's condolences to the family of Elsie 
Glickert who passed away on January 28th at the age of 96.  Ms. Glickert served on City Council 
from 1969 to 1980 and was a stalwart member of the community.  Her service to this community 
will be greatly missed.   
 Mayor Crow then acknowledged Black History Month; a time to pause and reflect on the 
history of this country. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Councilmember Hales moved to approve the Agenda as presented, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
D. PROCLAMATION 

None 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. January 24, 2022, Study Session Draft Minutes – Annex and Trinity Renovations Update, 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

2. January 24, 2022, Regular Draft Minutes, Councilmember Cusick moved to approve, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Dana Barhard is nominated to the Urban Forestry Commission replacing John Roman’s 
expired term by Councilmember Aleta Klein, it was seconded by Councilmember Cusick, 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

2. Mary Gorman (LSBD) is nominated to the 2040 Visioning Task Force replacing Wendy 
Harris by Mayor Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Cusick, and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

3. Edward Schmidt is nominated to the St. Louis County Extension Council, replacing Adam 
Brown by Mayor Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, February 14, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings: 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such 
comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and 
made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note if your 
comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be 
recorded in the official record. 

 
Mayor Crow acknowledged that there were no public comments for tonight's meeting.   

 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Fogerty Park Trail Naming (Hazel Erby) 
2. Tree Trimming Contract 
3. Free Parking Meters – Extension Request 
4. Relocation Assistance Agreement – Lopez (1184 Briscoe Place, Apt B) 
5. Relocation Assistance Agreement – Allen (8684 Olive Blvd., Apt B 

 
Mr. Rose stated if the Consent Agenda is approved as presented he intends to provide Council with 
an update on the free parking meters for The Loop in approximately six months.  
 
Councilmember Cusick moved to approve Items 1 through 5 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Smotherson. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked Mr. Rose if he would inform Council when the official renaming 
of Fogerty Park Trail was scheduled to take place?  Mr. Rose stated that he would. 
 
Councilmember Cusick asked what if anything was being done to make people aware of the free 
parking meters in The Loop?  Mr. Rose stated the signage placed on the meters when free parking 
was previously approved will remain.  Staff will also be working with The Loop Special Business 
District to develop some form of advertisement that reflects the continuation of free parking.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Cusick's motion to approve carried unanimously. 
 

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Second (2nd) Quarter Financial Report - December 31, 2021 
 (VOTE OF ACCEPTANCE) 

 
Mr. Rose stated that the 2nd Quarter Financial Report would be presented by the Director of 
Finance, Keith Cole. 
 
Mr. Cole stated this is a summary of the 2nd Quarter of Fiscal Year 2022, ending December 31, 
2021. 
 
General Fund Revenues 
Adjusted Budget    $23,347,415 
YTD (Year-To-Date) Actual   $10,319,885 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  44.2% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $143,168 
 

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Key Points: 
 Increase in Sales and Use Tax of roughly $316,000, or 13.2%.  Mainly due to an increase in 

the County-Wide 1% Pool Tax. 
 Increase in Property Tax of roughly $335,000, or 17.7%.   
 Increase in Intergovernmental of roughly $63,000, or 6.6%.  Mainly due to an increase in 

the County Road Fund. 
 Increase in Inspection Fees and Permits of roughly $163,000, or 43.7%.  Mainly due to an 

increase in Building and Zoning fees. 
 Increase in Services Charges of roughly $203,000, or 58.7%.  The increase mainly from 

Ambulance Services. 
 Decrease in Other Revenue of roughly $951,000, or (69.5%).  Decrease mainly due to 

receiving ½ of the CARES Act funds in FY21. 
 
Overall, revenues as a percent of budget show a slight increase of 2.7% when compared to the 
same quarter of FY21. 
 
Councilmember Hales asked if the increase in property taxes was related to an increase in property 
values or the municipal tax rate?  Mr. Cole stated the increase is based on an accounting 
adjustment for uncollected residential property taxes.  A portion of those uncollected funds was 
reported as deferred revenue at the end of FY21, which was then realized and accounted for in 
FY22.  So, it has nothing to do with the municipal tax rate.   
 
Councilmember Clay asked if the increase in service charges reflected actual receipts?  Mr. Cole 
stated that it did.   
 
General Fund Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget    $26,597,935 
YTD Actual     $11,961,816 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  45.0% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $614,545 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures in the Police Department of roughly $257,000, or 6.0% compared 

to the same quarter of FY21.  This is mainly from salaries full-time and overtime.   
 Increase in expenditures in the Fire Department of roughly $137,000, or 5.2% compared to 

the same quarter of FY21.  This is mainly from salaries full-time and overtime.   
 Increase in expenditures in Facilities of roughly $65,000, or 15.6% compared to the same 

quarter of FY21.  This is mainly due to plumbing repair damages and water restoration at 
630 Trinity. 

 Increase in expenditures in Centennial Commons of roughly $92,000, or 53.3% compared 
to the same quarter of FY21.  This is mainly from personnel services and electricity.  
Centennial Commons was not fully operational in FY21 due to COVID.   

 
Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget decreased slightly by (0.6%) when compared to 
the same quarter of FY21. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked how any deficits related to the City's ambulances were being 
tracked?  Mr. Rose stated although deficits are reflected in the General Fund; which utilizes an 
aggregated form of accounting, there is no way to distinguish these shortfalls.  Therefore, he has 
asked Chief Hinson to prepare a report regarding the operation of the department's ambulances to 
reflect any deficits that currently exist. 
 
 
 
 

E - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Revenues 
Adjusted Budget    $2,102,000  
YTD Actual     $909,747  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  43.3%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $98,501  
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue increased roughly 12.3% during the 2nd Quarter of FY22, compared to 

the same quarter of FY21.   
 
Councilmember Clay questioned whether it was correct to assume that similar to the increase in 
expenditures for Centennial Commons, the increase in sales tax revenue for this quarter when 
compared with the same quarter in FY21 is somewhat like comparing apples to grapes simply 
because so much was shuttered last fiscal year?  Mr. Cole stated that is correct since revenues 
and expenditures tend to fluctuate from month to month.  It's also important to note that the Capital 
Improvement Sales Tax is based on per capita, and the Park & Stormwater Sales Tax is based on 
point of sale. 
 Councilmember Clay stated he thinks it is important for the public to understand that they are 
going to see these wild swings which are being impacted by this current environment. 
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget    $2,223,820  
YTD Actual     $410,563  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  18.5%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $234,887  
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures mainly from the asphalt overlay improvement project for various 

streets of $160,000; and tree removal expenses of $61,000.   
 
Park & Stormwater Sales Tax Revenues 
Adjusted Budget    $861,000 
YTD Actual     $458,477  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  53.2%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $8,889  
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the second quarter of FY22 increased by roughly 2.1% when 

compared to the same quarter of FY21.   
 
Park & Stormwater Sales Tax Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget    $1,324,526  
YTD Actual     $225,692  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  17.0%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $68,730 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures due to removal of hazardous Ash trees and tree stump grinding 

when compared to the same quarter of FY21.   
 
 
 

E - 1 - 4



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Public Safety Sales Tax Revenues 
Adjusted Budget    $1,601,500  
YTD Actual     $734,823  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  45.9%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2021   $84,489  
 
Key Points: 
 Revenue is based on per capita. 
 Sales Tax revenue for the second quarter of FY22 increased by roughly 13.2% when 

compared to the same quarter of FY21.   
 
Mr. Rose stated per capita is a county-wide tax and the City's portion of that tax is based on its 
population. 
 
Public Safety Sales Tax Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget    $908,835  
YTD Actual     $443,078  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  48.8%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2021   $13,460  
 
Key Points: 
 Expenditures are in line when compared to the same quarter of FY21.  
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to accept Mr. Cole's summary of the 2nd Quarter Financial 
Report, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 
  

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Bill 9451 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 

OFFICIALS ND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7168.  Bill Number 9451 was read for the 
second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Hales stated he heard Ordinance No. 7165 on the first reading and Ordinance No. 
7168 on the second reading.  Ms. Reese stated the correct Ordinance number is 7168. 
 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Cusick. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Cusick, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions 
1. Resolution 2022-1 - A Resolution for Fiscal Year 2021-2022; Budget Amendment #2 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

Bills 
Introduced by Councilmember Hales 

2. Bill 9452 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VII OF THE TRAFFIC CODE, TO 
REVISE TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. (Golf Course Dr. at Alanson Dr.)  
Bill Number 9452 was read for the first time.   

E - 1 - 5



Page 6 of 6 

  Introduced by Councilmember Smotherson 
3. Bill 9453 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION

OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS “7579 OLIVE BOULEVARD”.  (Quik Trip Store.)
Bill Number 9453 was read for the first time.

N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions

Mayor Crow reported that Derek Deaver, owner of the Three Kings Public House was
appointed as Chair of the Loop Special Business District.  Whenever possible, Mayor Crow
encouraged his colleagues to join in and watch this Board's vibrant conversations.

3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes
4. Other Discussions/Business

O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continue if needed)

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS
Councilmember Cusick stated he would like to remind everyone that a virtual State of the City
Address sponsored by the U City Historical Society will be held on Wednesday, March 2nd at
7 p.m.  Mayor Crow and Mr. Rose will also be a part of this event, and the link can be found on
the City's webpage under Events.

Councilmember Hales thanked Public Works, as well as the Fire and Police Departments, for
their persistent endeavors during the recent winter storms.

Councilmember Smotherson acknowledged the passing of his friend, Lieutenant William
Anderson; a longtime employee of the U City Police Department and resident of this community.

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION
None

Councilmember Hales moved to adjourn the meeting, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Smotherson, and the motion carried unanimously. 

R. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Crow adjourned the City Council meeting at 7:01 p.m.

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk 

E - 1 - 6



J - 1 - 1



J - 1 - 2



J - 1 - 3



J - 1 - 4



J - 1 - 5



J - 1 - 6



J - 1 - 7



J - 1 - 8



J - 1 - 9



J - 1 - 10



J - 1 - 11



J - 1 - 12



J - 1 - 13



J - 1 - 14



J - 1 - 15



J - 1 - 16



J - 1 - 17



J - 1 - 18



J - 1 - 19



J - 1 - 20



J - 1 - 21



J - 1 - 22



J - 1 - 23



J - 1 - 24



J - 1 - 25



J - 1 - 26



J - 1 - 27



J - 1 - 28



J - 1 - 29



J - 1 - 30



J - 1 - 31



J - 1 - 32



J - 1 - 33



J - 1 - 34



J - 2 - 1



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019       

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  EDRST Funding Recommendations 

AGENDA SECTION:  City Manager’s Report  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 

At the July 9 meeting of the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board (EDRST), the following 
requests were approved to recommend to City Council for final approval during the FY 20 funding 
period: 

U City Farmers market for $28,500 – events and operations 
St. Louis Artworks for $11,100 – Mural project for youth workforce skills development 
U City School District, EMT Training for $68,300 
U City in Bloom for $50,573 – Olive Blvd and Delmar Loop Planters 
University City Façade Improvement Program for $150,000 

The total of these projects is $308,473.  Budgeted funding available is $367,018 with reserves 
totaling $1,195,474.   

Action on the funding requests from the Loop Special Business District (LSBD) were deferred 
until City finance staff can reconcile the accounts with the LSBD.  Applications for a second 
round of funding are due on September 6. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
The City Manager concurs with the EDRST Boards recommendation with one modification. St. 
Louis Artworks has agreed to change the location of the mural project to the interior of the City’s 
parking garage, to be painted directly on a wall, rather than an interior location at Barbara Jordan 
Elementary school.   As such, the City Manager recommends approval of the mural project to be 
changed to the Delmar Parking Garage.

ATTACHMENTS: 

• EDRST Funding Applications for all project submitted.

K - 1 - 1K - 1- 1

J - 2 - 2



J - 2 - 3



J - 2 - 4



J - 2 - 5



J - 2 - 6



J - 2 - 7



J - 2 - 8



J - 2 - 9



J - 2 - 10



J - 3 - 1



RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
  

This Relocation Assistance Agreement is entered into and made effective this ____ day 
of February, 2022 by and between the City of University City, Missouri ("Grantor"), and Omar 
O’Hara ("Grantee").  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor approved a Redevelopment Agreement in connection with the Olive 
Boulevard Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and related 
RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, including a Relocation Policy. See Ordinance No. 7108 
(6/10/2019) and Redevelopment Agreement Section 3.2 and Exhibit I.  

B. The Relocation Policy provides assistance required under Missouri law to 
occupants or businesses relocated in connection with the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, and 
certain additional benefits to residents and businesses affected by the RPA 1 Redevelopment 
Project.  

C.  Grantee is a displaced residential person within the meaning of said Relocation 
Policy and resided at 8640 Olive Blvd., Apt C in RPA 1, on or before May 1, 2018. 

D. Grantee has purchased a new home at 1131 W. Parkedge, University City, MO 
63130 and is eligible for a grant of two thousand dollars ($2,000) to be used for the purchase of 
the new home. 

E. Grantor is willing to make said grant to Grantee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, Grantor 
and Grantee agree as follows: 

1. Grantee is eligible for a grant from Grantor to be used for the purchase of a new 
home in University City, as stated in the above Recitals. 

2. Grantee shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor to 
satisfy Grantor that Grantee will use the funds in connection with the purchase of a new home in 
University City as provided under the Relocation Policy. Grantor may pay the funds directly to 
Grantee. 

3. In the event that Grantee (i) sells or transfers said new home to another person or 
(ii) does not use the new home as his principal residence, before the expiration of five years from 
the date Grantee purchased the new home, Grantee shall immediately notify Grantor in writing 
and repay the funds to Grantor, provided that the repayment amount shall be reduced by twenty 
percent (20%) for each full year Grantee owned the new home and used it as their principal 
residence. Grantee shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor during the 
five-year period to satisfy Grantor that they are the owners of the new home and are using it as 

J - 3 - 2



2 
 

their principal residence. If Grantee does not promptly provide such documents or information, 
they shall repay the full grant amount to Grantor. 

4. If Grantee fails to comply with this Relocation Assistance Agreement, Grantor 
shall be entitled to repayment of the grant funds as provided herein and Grantee shall also pay 
any attorney's fees and costs incurred by Grantor to enforce it.  

 

  

GRANTOR      GRANTEE 

By:___________________________   By:_________________________________ 
Gregory Rose      Omar O’Hara   
City Manager                                                             1131 W. Parkedge 
City of University City, Missouri                               University City, MO 63130 
6801 Delmar Blvd.                                                       
(314) 862-6767                                                            

 

 

J - 3 - 3



  

 4193 Crescent Drive, Suite C 
 St. Louis, MO  63129 

(314) 395-9905   fax: (844) 273-7147 

 
February 18, 2022 
 
City of University City, Missouri 
C/o: Keith Cole, Director of Finance 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE:  Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation  

Redevelopment Project  
Property Address:  8640 Olive Blvd., Apt. C, University City, MO 63132 

 
INVOICE 

 
I certify that Omar O’Hara, who currently resides at 8640 Olive Blvd., Apt. C in the 
Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Project 
Area, has secured the purchase of a replacement home and has made arrangements to 
relocate to 1131 W. Parkedge, University City, MO and is eligible to receive relocation 
benefits pursuant to the University City Relocation Policy.  The above-named party is 
eligible for and has elected to claim the following relocation benefit at this time: 
 
  
  X   ) Grant of $2,000 for the purchase of a home in University City.    
           

• The grant can be used to pay closing costs, a down payment, renovation 
costs or temporary rent while a permanent home is being renovated.  
 

  
Total  $2,000.00  (supporting documentation attached)  
 

  
  
Please make check payable to: Omar O’Hara 
     1131 W. Parkedge 
     University City, MO 63130 
 
 
TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $2,000.00 
 
 
________________________________ 
Project Manager 

J - 3 - 4



Missouri  
Residential Lease Agreement  

   
This Lease Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered on July 19, 2017 (the 

"Effective Date") by and between C.E.B. Real Estate Enterprises, LTD. (the "Landlord") and the 
following tenants:  
   
Omar O’Hara  (the "Tenant")  
   
Subject to the terms and conditions stated below the parties agree as follows:  
   
1. Property. Landlord, in consideration of the lease payments provided in this Agreement, leases 
to Tenant a apartment with 3 bedroom and 2 bathrooms, located at 8640 Olive Blvd., Apt. C, St. 
Louis, MO 63132 (the "Property"). No other portion of the building wherein the Property is 
located is included unless expressly provided for in this Agreement.  
   
2. Term. This Agreement will begin on July 19, 2017 (the "Start Date") and will terminate on 
June 30, 2017 (the "Termination Date").  
   
Tenant will vacate the Property upon termination of the Agreement, unless: (i) Landlord and 
Tenant have extended this Agreement in writing or signed a new agreement; (ii) mandated by 
local rent control law; or (iii) Landlord accepts Rent from Tenant (other than past due Rent), in 
which case a month-to-month tenancy will be created which either party may terminate by 
Tenant giving Landlord written notice of at least 30 days prior to the desired termination date, or 
by Landlord giving Tenant written notice as provided by law. Rent will be at a rate agreed to by 
Landlord and Tenant, or as allowed by law. All other terms and conditions of this Agreement 
will remain in full force and effect.  
   
3. Management. The Tenant is hereby notified that C.E.B. Real Estate Enterprises, LTD. is the 
property manager of the Property. Should the Tenant have any issues or concerns, the Tenant 
may contact C.E.B. Real Estate Enterprises, LTD. by one of the methods below:  
   
Address: P.O. Box 50188, St. Louis, Missouri 63105  
Telephone: 314-275-0807  
Email: cebreentltd@gmail.com  
   
4. Rent. Tenant will pay to Landlord rent in the amount of $675.00 (the "Rent"), payable in 
advance on the 1st day of each month, and is delinquent on the next day. If that day falls on a 
weekend or legal holiday, the rent is due on the next business day. There will be no rent 
increases through the initial term of the lease. Landlord may increase the rent that will be paid 
during any month-to-month renewal period by providing at least 30 days written notice to 
Tenant.  
   
Payments should be sent to:  
Payment address: P.O. Box 50188, St. Louis, Missouri 63105, or at such other place as Landlord 
may designate from time to time.  

J - 3 - 5



   
Payments can be made by using one of the following methods of payment:  
     
- Personal check  
- Money order  
- Cashier's check  
   
Tenant agrees to submit rent payments by one of the methods above. In the event of roommates, 
or another form of joint or multiple occupancy, Tenant will be responsible for collecting 
payment from all parties and submitting a single payment to Landlord. Tenant is responsible for 
any payment made by mail and not received by the due date stated herein. Mailed payments must 
be received on or before the due date. Rent payments for any partial month will be pro-rated at 
the rate of 1/30th of the monthly rent payment per day.  
   
5. Security Deposit. At the time of signing this Agreement, Tenant must pay to Landlord a 
security deposit in the amount of $0.00 (the "Security Deposit"). Landlord may use therefrom 
such amounts as are reasonably necessary to remedy Tenants' default in the payment of rent, 
repair damages to the Property exclusive of ordinary wear and tear, and to clean the Property if 
necessary.  
   
In accordance with Missouri Revised Statutes § 535.300, Tenant acknowledges that the Security 
Deposit does not exceed two (2) months rent. Within thirty days after the termination of the 
tenancy, Landlord will return the full amount of the Security Deposit to Tenant OR provide 
Tenant with a written itemized list of damages and the cost to repair them, along with the 
remaining balance of the Security Deposit.  
   
6. Non-Sufficient Funds. Tenant will be charged a monetary fee of $25.00 as reimbursement of 
the expenses incurred by Landlord for each check that is returned to Landlord for lack of 
sufficient funds. In addition, a check returned due to insufficient funds will be subject to any and 
all late payments provisions included in this Agreement (if any). All charges will be immediately 
due from Tenant and failure to make immediate payment will constitute a default under the terms 
of this Agreement.  
   
Landlord reserves the right to demand future payments by cashier's check, money order or 
certified funds on all future payments in the event of a check returned for insufficient funds. 
Nothing in this paragraph limits other remedies available to the Landlord as a payee of a 
dishonored check. Landlord and Tenant agree that three (3) returned checks in any 12 month 
period constitutes frequent return of checks due to insufficient funds and may be considered a 
just cause for eviction.  
   
7. Late Payments. In the event that any payment required to be paid hereunder by Tenant is not 
made within 5 days of when due, Tenant will pay to Landlord, in addition to such payment or 
other charges due hereunder, a "late fee" in the amount of $25.00.  
   

J - 3 - 6



8. Failure to Pay. Tenant is hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on Tenant's 
credit history may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if Tenant fails to fulfill the terms of 
their credit obligations, such as their financial obligations under the terms of this Agreement.  
   
9. Occupants. The only persons who may live on the Property during the term of this Agreement 
are:  
   
Omar O’Hara 
Leneia Weston O’Hara 
Xoe O’Hara 
Xeta O’Hara 
Scarlette O’Hara 
Stella O’Hara 
  
or as allowed per the Occupancy Permit issued by the City of University City, Missouri. 
   
Tenant may have guests on the Property for not over 14 consecutive days or 30 days in a 
calendar year, and no more than two guests per bedroom at any one time. Persons staying more 
than 14 consecutive days or more than 30 days in any calendar year will NOT be considered 
original occupants of the Property. Tenant must obtain the prior written approval of Landlord if 
an invitee of Tenant will be present at the Property for more than 14 consecutive days or 30 days 
in a calendar year.  
   
10. Possession. Tenant will be entitled to possession of the Property on the first day of the term 
of this Agreement, and will yield possession to Landlord on the last day of the term of this 
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing. At the expiration of the term, 
Tenant will remove its goods and effects and peaceably yield up the Property to Landlord in as 
good a condition as when delivered to Tenant, ordinary wear and tear excepted.  
   
11. Use of Property/Absences. Tenant will occupy and use the Property as a full-time 
residential dwelling unit. Tenant will notify Landlord of any anticipated extended absence from 
the Property not later than the first day of the extended absence.  
   
No retail, commercial or professional use of the Property is allowed unless the Tenant receives 
prior written consent of the Landlord and such use conforms to applicable zoning laws. In such 
case, Landlord may require Tenant to obtain liability insurance for the benefit of Landlord. 
Landlord reserves the right to refuse to consent to such use in its sole and absolute discretion.  
   
The failure to abide by the provisions of this section will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement and is a just cause for eviction.  
   
12. Appliances. The following appliances will be provided by Landlord:  
   
- Stove  
- Refrigerator 
- Dishwasher  

J - 3 - 7



   
Tenant will return all such items at the end of the term in a condition as good as existed at the 
beginning of the lease term, normal wear and tear excepted.  
   
13. Storage. Tenant will be allowed use of the following additional storage:  
   
One assigned storage locker in basement. Any items not stored in the provided storage lockers 
will be considered abandoned property, and subject to foreiture and disposal at the Landlord's 
discretion without notice.  
   
Tenant will store only personal property Tenant owns, and will not store property claimed by 
another or in which another has any right, title or interest. Tenant will not store any improperly 
packaged food or perishable goods, flammable materials, explosives, hazardous waste or other 
inherently dangerous material, or illegal substances. Landlord will not be liable for loss of, or 
damage to, such stored items.  
   
14. Parking. Tenant is permitted parking as follows:  
   
One non-exclusive parking space is provided for the tenant. Guests of tenants are not provided 
parking accommodations. Prior written notice must be provided to the Landlord for vehicles of 
guests. Illegally/improperly parked or stored vehicles are subject to immediate removal at 
vehicle owner's expense. Tenant will provide make, model, color and registered state license 
plate number to landlord. If a new license plate is issued for the tenant's vehicle, the tenant is 
responsible for notifying Landlord of this change.  
   
The non-exclusive parking is to be used for parking properly licensed and operable motor 
vehicles, except for trailers, boats, campers, buses or trucks. Tenant will park in assigned 
space(s) only. Parking space(s) must be kept clean at all times. Vehicles leaking oil, gas, or other 
motor vehicle fluids will not be parked on the Property. Mechanical work or storage of 
inoperable vehicles is not permitted in parking space(s) or elsewhere on the Property.  
   
15. Roof/Fire Escapes. Use of the roof and/or the fire escapes by Tenants and/or guests is 
limited to emergency use only. No other use is permitted, including but not limited to, the 
placement of personal property.  
   
16. Pets. No pets, dogs, cats, birds or other animals are allowed on or about the Property, without 
Landlord's prior written consent, excepting guide, service, or signal dogs. Strays must not be 
kept or fed in or around the Property. If a pet has been on or allowed on the Property, even 
temporarily (with or without the Landlord's permission) Tenant may be charged for cleaning, de-
fleaing, deodorizing, shampooing, or replacing any portion of the Property.  
   
17. Keys and Locks. Tenant will be given a set number of keys for the Property. If all keys are 
not returned to Landlord following termination of the Agreement, Tenant will be charged a 
monetary fee to replace the keys. If a security deposit was collected by the Landlord at the time 
of signing this Agreement, then such amount will be subtracted from the Security Deposit. 
Tenant is not permitted to change any lock or place additional locking devices on any door or 

J - 3 - 8



window of the Property without Landlord's approval prior to installation. If allowed, Tenant must 
provide Landlord with keys to any changed lock immediately upon installation.  
   
18. Maintenance and Repairs. Landlord will have the responsibility to maintain the Property in 
good repair at all times and perform all repairs necessary to satisfy any implied warranty of 
habitability, except that Tenant will be responsible for the following:  
   
- Tenant provide assistance in troubleshooting tenant repair requests as needed. 
- Tenant will be charged the cost to repair any broken windows in Tenant's unit.  
- Tenant will be charged for the cost to provide pest control to Tenant's unit when infestation is 
caused or allowed by Tenant. Tenant will be, additionally, charged for the cost to provide pest 
control to other units contaminated as a result of infestation proximately caused or allowed by 
Tenant.  
   
Except in an emergency, all maintenance and repair requests must be made in writing and 
delivered to Landlord or property manager. If Tenant is delinquent in rent at the time a repair 
notice is given, Landlord is not obligated to make the repair. A repair request will be deemed 
permission for the Landlord or property manager to enter the Property to perform such 
maintenance or repairs in accordance with this Agreement unless otherwise specifically 
requested, in writing, by Tenant. Tenant may not place any unreasonable restrictions upon 
Landlord or property manager's access or entry. Landlord will have expectation that the Property 
is in a safe and habitable condition upon entry.  
   
19. Utilities and Services. Tenant will pay directly for all utilities, services, and charges 
provided to the Property, including any and all deposits required, except for the following, which 
will be paid by Landlord:  
   
- Water  
- Garbage  
- Sewer  
   
20. Default. If Tenant fails to comply with any of the material provisions of this Agreement, 
other than the covenant to pay rent, or of any present rules and regulations or any that may be 
hereafter prescribed by Landlord, or materially fails to comply with any duties imposed on 
Tenant by statute, within seven (7) days after delivery of written notice by Landlord specifying 
the non-compliance and indicating the intention of Landlord to terminate the Lease by reason 
thereof, Landlord may terminate this Agreement. If Tenant fails to pay rent when due and the 
default continues for seven (7) days thereafter, Landlord may, at Landlord's option, declare the 
entire balance of rent payable hereunder to be immediately due and payable and may exercise 
any and all rights and remedies available to Landlord at law or in equity or may immediately 
terminate this Agreement.  
   
21. Termination upon Sale of Property. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, Landlord may terminate this Agreement upon 60 days' written notice to Tenant that 
the Property has been sold.  
   

J - 3 - 9



22. Early Termination. Tenant may, upon 60 days' written notice to Landlord, terminate this 
Agreement provided that the Tenant pays a termination fee equal to $650.00 or the maximum 
allowable by law, whichever is less. Termination will be effective as of the last day of the 
calendar month following the end of the 60 day notice period. The termination fee is in addition 
to all rent due up until the termination day.  
   
23. Holding Over. Should the Tenant hold over the term hereby created with consent of the 
Landlord, the term of this lease will become a month-to-month tenancy and be deemed to be and 
be extended at the rental rate herein provided, and otherwise upon the terms and conditions in 
this Agreement, until either party hereto serves upon the other thirty (30) days written notice of 
termination, reflecting the effective date of cancellation.  
   
24. Military Termination. In the event, the Tenant is, or hereafter becomes, a member of the 
United States Armed Forces on extended active duty and hereafter the Tenant receives 
permanent change of station orders to depart from the area where the Property is located, or is 
relieved from active duty, retires or separates from the military, or is ordered into military 
housing, then in any of these events, the Tenant may terminate this lease upon giving thirty (30) 
days written notice to the Landlord. The Tenant will also provide to the Landlord a copy of the 
official orders or a letter signed by the Tenant's commanding officer, reflecting the change, 
which warrants termination under this provision. The Tenant will pay prorated rent for any days 
(he/she) occupy the dwelling past the first day of the month. Any security deposit will be 
promptly returned to the Tenant, provided there are no damages to the Property.  
   
25. Condition of Property. Tenant stipulates, represents and warrants that Tenant has examined 
the Property, and that they are at the time of this Agreement in good order, repair, and in a safe, 
clean and tenantable condition.  
   
26. Alterations and Improvements. Tenant will make no alterations to the buildings or 
improvements to the Property or construct any building or make any other improvements on the 
Property without the prior written consent of Landlord. Any and all alterations, changes, and/or 
improvements built, constructed or placed on the Property by Tenant will, unless otherwise 
provided by written agreement between Landlord and Tenant, be and become the property of 
Landlord and remain on the Property at the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  
   
27. Hazardous Materials. Tenant will not keep on the Property any item of a dangerous, 
flammable or explosive character that might unreasonably increase the danger of fire or 
explosion on the Property or that might be considered hazardous or extra hazardous by any 
responsible insurance company.  
   
28. Lead Disclosure. Many homes and apartments built before 1978 have paint that contains 
lead (called lead-based paint). Lead from paint chips and dust can pose serious health hazards if 
not taken care of properly. Federal law requires that tenants and lessees receive certain 
information before renting pre-1978 housing. By signing this Agreement, Tenant represents and 
agrees that Landlord has provided Tenant with such information, including, but not limited to, 
the EPA booklet entitled Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home.  
   

J - 3 - 10



29. Damage to Property. If the Property is damaged or destroyed as to render it uninhabitable, 
then either Landlord or Tenant will have the right to terminate this Agreement as of the date on 
which such damage occurs, through written notice to the other party to be given within 20 days 
of occurrence of such damage. However, if such damage should occur as the result of the 
conduct or negligence of Tenants or Tenants' guests or invitees, Landlord will have the right to 
termination and Tenants will be responsible for all losses, including, but not limited to, damage 
and repair costs as well as loss of rental income.  
   
30. Landlord Access to Property. Landlord and Landlord's agents will have the right at all 
reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and any renewal thereof to enter the Property 
for the purpose of inspecting the Property and all buildings and improvements thereon. Tenant 
will make the Property available to Landlord or Landlord's agents for the purposes of making 
repairs or improvements, or to supply agreed services or show the Property to prospective buyers 
or tenants, or in case of emergency. Except in case of emergency, Landlord will give Tenant 
reasonable notice of intent to enter. For these purposes, twenty four (24) hour written notice will 
be deemed reasonable.  
   
31. Indemnity Regarding Use of Property. To the extent permitted by law, Tenant agrees to 
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Landlord from and against any and all losses, claims, 
liabilities, and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, if any, which Landlord may suffer 
or incur in connection with Tenant's possession, use or misuse of the Property, except Landlord's 
act or negligence. Tenant hereby expressly releases Landlord and/or agent from any and all 
liability for loss or damage to Tenant's property or effects whether on the Property, garage, 
storerooms or any other location in or about the Property, arising out of any cause whatsoever, 
including but not limited to rain, plumbing leakage, fire or theft, except in the case that such 
damage has been adjudged to be the result of the gross negligence of Landlord, Landlord's 
employees, heirs, successors, assignees and/or agents.  
   
32. Accommodation. Landlord agrees to and is committed to complying with all applicable laws 
providing equal housing opportunities. To ensure compliance, Landlord will make reasonable 
accommodations for the known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified 
individual with a disability who is an applicant or a tenant, unless undue hardship would result. It 
is the applicant or tenants responsibility to make Landlord aware of any required 
accommodation. In writing, the individual with the disability should specify the nature and effect 
of the disability and any accommodation he or she needs. If after thoughtful consideration and 
evaluation, the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, Landlord 
will make the accommodation. Landlord reserves the right to require appropriate medical 
verification of the disability.  
   
33. Compliance with Regulations. Tenant will promptly comply with all laws, ordinances, 
requirements and regulations of the federal, state, county, municipal and other authorities, and 
the fire insurance underwriters. However, Tenant will not by this provision be required to make 
alterations to the exterior of the building or alterations of a structural nature.  
   
34. Mechanics Liens. Neither Tenant nor anyone claiming through the Tenant will have the 
right to file mechanics liens or any other kind of lien on the Property and the filing of this 

J - 3 - 11



Agreement constitutes notice that such liens are invalid. Further, Tenant agrees to (1) give actual 
advance notice to any contractors, subcontractors or suppliers of goods, labor, or services that 
such liens will not be valid, and (2) take whatever additional steps that are necessary in order to 
keep the Property free of all liens resulting from construction done by or for the Tenant.  
   
35. Subordination of Lease. This Agreement is subordinate to any mortgage that now exists, or 
may be given later by Landlord, with respect to the Property.  
   
36. Assignment and Subletting. Tenant may not assign or sublease any interest in the Property, 
nor assign, mortgage or pledge this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Landlord, 
which will not be unreasonably withheld. Under Missouri law, Landlord reserves the right to 
double the Rent if Tenant subleases without prior consent of Landlord.  
   
37. Additional Provisions; Disclosures.  
   
- No combustibles may be stored in any area of the basement, including, within Tenant's 
assigned storage locker.  
- Windows are for the ventilation of the dwelling and are not to be used as a means of 
ingress/egress except for life or death emergencies.  
- Window screens are not to be removed by the tenant. 
 - Tenant may not alter fixtures in common areas.  
- Basement area may not be used for entertainment or in any manner that may interfere with the 
quiet enjoyment of others.  
- Refuse area is to be used only for the immediate disposal of items that fit into the provided   
trash carts. Tenant may not place disposed items against or around the trash carts. Tenant may 
not place items in trash cart that are prohibited as determined by the City of University City. 
Disposal of bulky items that will not fit into the trash cart is the responsibility of the tenant. 
Improper disposal of items will result in lease termination.  
- Antenna (satellite, television, radio, telephone) are prohibited from being affixed to the building 
structure without Landlord's written consent.  
- Common interior and exterior areas of building are subject to audio/video monitoring.  
- Grounds and parking areas are subject to audio/video monitoring.  
- Illegal drug trafficking, illegal drug possession or use is strictly prohibited and is a substantial 
breach to this lease. Said illegal drug trafficking, illegal drug possession or use will be 
considered grounds for immediate termination of lease and eviction, subject to all applicable 
penalties as aforementioned. Any other illegal activity on the property will result in immediate 
termination of lease and eviction.  
   
38. Notice. Notice under this Agreement will not be deemed valid unless given or served in 
writing and forwarded by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party at the appropriate address 
set forth below. Such addresses may be changed from time to time by either party by providing 
notice as set forth below. Notices mailed in accordance with these provisions will be deemed 
received on the third day after posting.  
   
 

 

J - 3 - 12



Landlord:  
   
C.E.B. Real Estate Enterprises, LTD.  
P.O. Box 50188, St. Louis, Missouri 63105  
Tenant:  
   
Omar O’Hara 
8640 Olive Blvd., Apt. C 
St. Louis, MO 63132 
 
Such addresses may be changed from time to time by any party by providing notice as set forth 
above.  
   
39. Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will be 
deemed an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same instrument. For purposes of 
executing this Agreement, a document signed and/or transmitted by any electronic form deemed 
valid in accordance with the Missouri Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, including but not 
limited to by facsimile machine, digital signature or a scanned image, such as a pdf via e-mail, is 
to be treated as an original signature and document.  
   
40. Attorney's Fees. The prevailing party shall have the right to collect from the other party its 
reasonable costs and necessary disbursements and attorneys' fees incurred in enforcing this 
Agreement.  
   
41. Dispute Resolution. The parties will attempt to resolve any dispute arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement through friendly negotiations amongst the parties. If the matter is not resolved 
by negotiation, the parties will resolve the dispute using the below Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) procedure:  
   
Any controversies or disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement will be submitted to 
mediation in accordance with any statutory rules of mediation for the State of Missouri. If 
mediation does not successfully resolve the dispute, the parties may proceed to seek an 
alternative form of resolution in accordance with any other rights and remedies afforded to them 
by law.  
   
42. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed, construed and interpreted by, through 
and under the Laws of the State of Missouri.  
   
43. Waiver and Severability. The failure of either party to enforce any provisions of this 
Agreement will not be construed as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to subsequently 
enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this Agreement. If any provision of 
this Agreement or the application thereof will, for any reason and to any extent, be invalid or 
unenforceable, neither the remainder of this Agreement nor the application of the provision to 
other persons, entities or circumstances will be affected thereby, but instead will be enforced to 
the maximum extent permitted by law.  
   

J - 3 - 13



J - 3 - 14



   
Lease Agreement  

Inspection Checklist  
   
Address:  8640 Olive Blvd., Apt. C, St. Louis, MO 63132  
   
Tenant has inspected the Property and states that the Property is in satisfactory condition, free of 
defects, except as noted below:  
   

Satisfactory    Comments  
   
Kitchen  
   
Cupboards    _______   ____________________________________  
Floor ceiling    _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Counter surfaces   _______   ____________________________________  
Stove and oven  _______   ____________________________________  
Refrigerator    _______   ____________________________________  
Garbage disposal   _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
   
Living Room/ Dining Room  
   
Floor covering   _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling  _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
     
Bathroom (Hall) 
   
Floor covering    _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Shower and tub   _______   ____________________________________  
Toilet     _______   ____________________________________  
Plumbing fixtures   _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
Sink     _______   ____________________________________  
Vanity     _______   ____________________________________  
Medicine cabinet   _______   ____________________________________  
 

J - 3 - 15



Bathroom (Master) 
   
Floor covering    _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Shower and tub   _______   ____________________________________  
Toilet     _______   ____________________________________  
Plumbing fixtures   _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
Sink     _______   ____________________________________  
Vanity     _______   ____________________________________  
Medicine cabinet   _______   ____________________________________  
 
   
Hallways or Other Areas  
   
Floor covering   _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Closets    _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
Furnace    _______   ____________________________________  
Air conditioner   _______   ____________________________________  
Patio or deck    _______   ____________________________________  
Yard     _______   ____________________________________  
Other (specify)   _______   ____________________________________  
     
Bedroom North 
   
Floor covering   _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Closet     _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
   
Bedroom South 

   
Floor covering   _______   ____________________________________  
Walls and ceiling   _______   ____________________________________  
Closet     _______   ____________________________________  
Windows    _______   ____________________________________  
Doors     _______   ____________________________________  
Light fixtures    _______   ____________________________________  
   
 

J - 3 - 16



J - 3 - 17



J - 3 - 18



J - 3 - 19



J - 3 - 20



J - 3 - 21



J - 3 - 22



J - 3 - 23



J - 3 - 24



J - 3 - 25



J - 3 - 26



J - 3 - 27



J - 3 - 28



J - 3 - 29



J - 3 - 30



J - 4 - 1



RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
  

This Relocation Assistance Agreement is entered into and made effective this ____ day 
of February, 2022, by and between the City of University City, Missouri ("Grantor") and Marsha 
Perry ("Grantee").  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor approved a Redevelopment Agreement in connection with the Olive 
Boulevard Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and related 
RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, including a Relocation Policy. See Ordinance No. 7108 
(6/10/2019) and Redevelopment Agreement Section 3.2 and Exhibit I.  

B. The Relocation Policy provides assistance required under Missouri law to 
occupants or businesses relocated in connection with the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, and 
certain additional benefits to residents and businesses affected by the RPA 1 Redevelopment 
Project.  

C.  Grantee is a displaced residential person within the meaning of said Relocation 
Policy and resided at 1184 Briscoe Place, Apt. A, University City, MO 63132, in RPA 1, on or 
before May 1, 2018. 

D. Grantee has rented a new home at 9000 Dever Drive, Jennings, MO 63136, and is 
eligible for a grant of one thousand four hundred forty dollars ($1,440), which is the difference 
between the rental costs at the new home compared to the rental costs at the prior home, 
measured over a period of one year. 

E. Grantor is willing to make said grant to Grantee to be used for the rental costs at  
Grantee’s new home. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, Grantor 
and Grantee agree as follows: 

1. Grantee is eligible for a grant from Grantor to be used for the rental costs at 
Grantee’s new home, as stated in the above Recitals. 

2. Grantee shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor to 
satisfy Grantor that Grantee will use the funds for the rental costs at Grantee’s new home as 
provided under the Relocation Policy. Grantor may pay the funds directly to Grantee. 

3. In the event Grantee (i) subleases said new home to another person or (ii) does not 
use the new home as Grantee’s principal residence, before the expiration of one year from the 
commencement of Grantee’s lease for the new home, Grantee shall immediately notify Grantor 
in writing and repay the funds to Grantor, provided that the repayment amount shall be reduced 
eight and thirty-three hundredths percent (8.33%) for each full month Grantee leased the new 
home, paid the rental cost, and used it as Grantee’s principal residence. Grantee shall provide all 

J - 4 - 2



documents and information requested by Grantor during the one-year period to satisfy Grantor 
that Grantee is the lessee of the new home and is using it as Grantee’s principal residence. If 
Grantee does not promptly provide such documents or information, Grantee shall repay the full 
grant amount to Grantor. 

4. If Grantee fails to comply with this Relocation Assistance Agreement, Grantor
shall be entitled to repayment of the grant funds as provided herein and Grantee shall also pay 
any attorney's fees and costs incurred by Grantor to enforce it.   

GRANTOR GRANTEE 

By:___________________________  By:_________________________________ 
Gregory Rose  Marsha Perry 
City Manager 9000 Dever Drive 
City of University City, Missouri          Jennings, MO 63136 
6801 Delmar Blvd. Telephone: (314) 747-3668 
(314) 862-6767 E-mail: marsha.perry@bjc.org

J - 4 - 3

mailto:marsha.perry@bjc.org


4193 Crescent Drive, Suite C 
St. Louis, MO  63129 

(314) 395-9905   fax: (844) 273-7147

February 11, 2022 

City of University City, Missouri 
C/o: Keith Cole, Director of Finance 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE:  Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation 
Redevelopment Project  
Property Address:  1184 Briscoe Place, Apt. A, University City, MO 63132 

INVOICE 

I certify that Marsha Perry, who previously resided at 1184 Briscoe Place, Apt. A in the 
Olive Blvd. Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Project 
Area, has leased a replacement home and relocated to 9000 Dever Drive, St. Louis, MO 
and is eligible to receive relocation benefits pursuant to the University City Relocation 
Policy.  The above-named party is eligible for and has elected to claim the following 
relocation benefit at this time: 

 X   ) Grant of $1,440 for the lease of a new residential unit in University City. 

• The grant is equal to the difference between the rental cost at the
replacement unit compared to the rental cost at the vacated unit, measured over a
period of one year and not to exceed $6,000.

Total $1,440.00  (supporting documentation attached) 

Please make check payable to: Marsha Perry 
9000 Dever Drive 
St. Louis, MO 63136 

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED:  $1,440.00 

________________________________ 
Project Manager 

J - 4 - 4



J - 5 - 1



1 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

Easement for Private Roadway recorded in 
Book 6325 at Page 904; Agreement recorded 
in Book 6325 at Page 907; Ordinance No. 
4522 recorded in Book 6408, Page 675  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
Space Above Line Reserved for Recorder's Use 
 
 
1. Title of Document:  Vacation, Release and Termination of Easement 
 
 
2. Date of Document:   As of ______________________, 2022 
 
 
3. Grantor(s):   CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
     6801 Delmar Blvd. 
     University City, MO 63130 

 
 

4. Grantee(s):    SIX FORTUNE, LLC 
     9569 Bolsa Avenue 
     Westminster, CA 92683 
 

 
5. Legal description:  See Exhibits A and B 
 
 
6.  Reference(s) to Book and Page(s): 
 
 
 

J - 5 - 2



2 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

VACATION, RELEASE AND TERMINATION OF EASEMENT 
 
This VACATION, RELEASE AND TERMINATION OF EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the 
"Termination") is made and entered into as of this _____ day of ___________________________, 2022 
by and between THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Missouri, Mailing Address: 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 
63130 (“Grantor”), and SIX FORTUNE, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company, Mailing Address: 9569 
Bolsa Avenue, Westminster, CA 92683 (“Grantee”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Easement for Private Roadway dated April 22, 1968 recorded 
in Book 6325 at Page 904 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for the County of St. Louis, Missouri 
(“Easement”), as well as that Agreement dated April 22, 1968 recorded in Book 6325 at Page 907 in the 
Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for the County of St. Louis, Missouri (“Agreement”, together with 
the Easement, the "Roadway Easement"), a certain roadway easement was granted to the benefit of certain 
real properties located in University City (the “Benefitted Properties”) over and across the following strip 
of land, situated in the County of St. Louis, State of Missouri: 

 
The East 15 feet of Lots “H” and “M” and the West 15 feet of Lots “I” and “L” of Groby’s 2nd 
Subdivision, the plat of which is recorded in Plat Book 9, Page 46, of the St. Louis City (former 
County) Records ("Easement Strip"); 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of University City vacated its right, title, and interest in the Easement Strip 
by that certain Ordinance dated July 24, 1969 recorded in Book 6408 at Page 675 in the Office of the 
Recorder of Deeds in and for the County of St. Louis, Missouri (“Ordinance”), at which time, the Roadway 
Easement triggered an easement upon the Easement Strip for the benefit of the Benefitted Properties; 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantor is the owner of that certain tract of real property known and numbered as 

7815 Olive Boulevard, located in the County of St. Louis, Missouri, more particularly described in Exhibit 
A attached hereto (“Releasing Property”), which said Releasing Property is located within the Benefitted 
Properties, and is thus arguably benefited by the Roadway Easement; 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee is the owner of a certain tract of real property known and numbered as 8008-

8020 Olive Boulevard, located in the County of St. Louis, Missouri, more particularly described in Exhibit 
B attached hereto (the “Burdened Property”), on which the Easement Strip is situated; 

 
WHEREAS, a building and related improvements on the Burdened Property were completed on 

or about 1970 (the “Improvements”) and were constructed over the Easement Strip, rendering the Roadway 
Easement inaccessible and unusable as of approximately 1970; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor desires to vacate, terminate, and release the Roadway Easement, the 

Easement and the Agreement, in their entirety. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are acknowledged, the Grantor hereby declares, agrees, provides and covenants, effective as of the date hereof: 
 
1. The Roadway Easement, the Easement, the Agreement, and any and all other right, title or interest of 
the Grantor to use and/or enjoy the Burdened Property as an owner of the Releasing Property, whether for 
roadway or for any other purpose whatsoever, are hereby fully and forever vacated, released, discharged, 

J - 5 - 3



3 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

relinquished, quit-claimed and terminated by Grantor, as the owner of the Releasing Property.  Grantee shall 
own and hold the Burdened Property free and clear from the encumbrance of the Roadway Easement, the 
Easement, the Agreement, or any and all other right, title or interest of the Grantor as an owner of the Releasing 
Property.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Termination, Grantee expressly 
acknowledges that nothing in this Termination shall be construed to strip or deprive the Grantor from 
exercising any or all of its rights or privileges as a governmental body over the Burdened Property, including, 
but not limited to, zoning, compliance with code requirements, collection of taxes due and payable, the 
issuance of permits, and any other governmental functions, all as permitted by law. 
 
2. This instrument shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Grantor, the Grantee, and 
their respective successors and assigns, and all persons claiming any right, title or interest in and to the 
Burdened Property. This instrument shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Missouri. 

 
[signature page follows]  

J - 5 - 4



4 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed this Vacation, Release and Termination of Easement as of the 
date first above written. 
 
GRANTOR:  
 
THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
a municipal corporation of the State of Missouri 
 

By: ___________________________ 

Name: ___________________________ 

Title:  ___________________________ 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
    )  SS. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
  

On this _____ day of ______________, 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for said state, personally 
appeared ____________________________________________ (name), 
_______________________________________(title) of the City of University City, a municipal corporation of the State 
of Missouri, known to me to be the person who executed the within Vacation, Release and Termination of Easement in 
behalf of said municipal corporation and acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purposes therein 
stated. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notary seal the day and year last above 
written.  
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
       Name of Notary Public: 
 
Commission Expires: 

J - 5 - 5



5 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantee has executed this Vacation, Release and Termination of Easement as of the 
date first above written. 
 
GRANTEE:  
 
SIX FORTUNE, LLC 
a Missouri limited liability company 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 Matthew Potter, authorized representative 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
    )  SS. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
  

On this _____ day of ______________, 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for said state, personally 
appeared Matthew Potter, authorized representative of Six Fortune, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company, known 
to me to be the person who executed the within Vacation, Release and Termination of Easement in behalf of said limited 
liability company and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes therein stated. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notary seal the day and year last above 
written.  
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
           Notary Public in the State of Missouri 
Commission Expires: 
  

J - 5 - 6



6 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
RELEASING PROPERTY 

 
Common Address: 7815 Olive Boulevard, St. Louis, MO 63130 

 

J - 5 - 7



7 
Termination of Easement – City of University City  674880 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

BURDENED PROPERTY 
 

 
Common Address: 8008-8020 Olive Boulevard, St. Louis, MO 63130 

Legal Description: A Tract of Land being part of Lots 7 and 8 of “Groby's Subdivision” according to the 
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 8 Page 25 of the St. Louis City (former County) Records and part of Lots 
C, D, E, F, G, H, I, K, L and M of Groby's 2nd Subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat 
Book 9 Page 46 of the St. Louis City (former County) Records and part of Fractional Section 4, Township 
45 North Range 6 East in the City of University City St. Louis County, Missouri being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the Northern right of way of Groby Road, Sixty Feet wide at the Easternmost corner 
of “Westover Lane”, a subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded in Book 61 Page 33 of the St. 
Louis County Records; thence along the Northern line of said subdivision, North 41 Degrees 57 Minutes 
00 Seconds West 172.52 feet to a point; thence North 89 Degrees 59 Minutes 00 Seconds West 1290.59 
feet to point on the Eastern right-of-way line of Eighty-First Street, forty feet wide; thence along said right-
of-way line North 00 Degrees 07 Minutes 00 Seconds East 509.13 feet to the Southwestern corner of a tract 
of land conveyed to American Property Investors, III by deed recorded in Book 6774 Page 1467 of the St. 
Louis County Records; thence along the Southern line of said tract 89 Degrees 58 Minutes 00 Seconds East 
211.68 feet to the Southeastern corner thereof; thence along the Eastern line of said tract, North 00 Degrees 
02 Minutes 00 Seconds East, 230.04 feet to a point on the Southern line of a tract of land conveyed to the 
State of Missouri (for the widening of Missouri State Highway 340 also known as Olive Boulevard) by 
deed recorded in Book 6445 Page 685 of the St. Louis County Records; thence along said Southern line 
South 81 Degrees 10 Minutes 00 Seconds East 683.96 feet to a point North 08 Degrees 50 Minutes 00 
Seconds East 6.00 feet to a point on the Southern line of a tract of land conveyed to the State of Missouri 
by instrument recorded in Book 4773 Page 551 of the St. Louis County Records; thence along said Southern 
line South 81 Degrees 10 Minutes 00 Seconds East 148.24 feet to the Northwestern corner of a tract of land 
conveyed to Lisa Toon by deed recorded in Book 11325 Page 2085 of the St. Louis County Records; thence 
along Toon's Western line South 21 Degrees 04 Minutes 00 Seconds East, 70.18 feet to a point of curvature; 
thence Southeastwardly 696.20 feet along a curve to the left, having a radius of 3145.00 feet and chord 
bearing South 27 Degrees 24 Minutes 30 Seconds East to a point of tangency; thence South 33 Degrees 45 
Minutes 00 Seconds East 65.45 feet to a point on the Northern right of way line of Groby Road as 
aforementioned; thence along said Northern right of way line South 51 Degrees 38 Minutes 00 Seconds 
West 14.77 feet to a point of beginning. 

 

J - 5 - 8



K - 1 - 1



  Page 2 of Agenda Item Cover Page 
 

February 28, 2022 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM UN20220228-01 

SUBJECT/TITLE:  REMOVAL OF A PARK COMMISSION MEMBER 

 

EXPLANATION:  (continued)  

  Member James Crowe served as City Forester from April 17, 2000 until his retirement on April 
30, 2019. On July 12, 2021, the City Council appointed him to fill a vacancy in an unexpired term ending 
January 21, 2023.  

On November 19, 2021, it was reported to the City Manager that at approximately 8:25 a.m. 
that day, Mr. Crowe approached the Parks Department Deputy Director in the parking lot of the 
Centennial Commons recreational facility at 7210 Olive in University City, and without provocation, 
yelled and used profanity at the Deputy Director, threatened to "get" the Deputy Director and the Parks 
Director at the next Park Commission meeting, and poked the Deputy Director in the chest with a finger 
approximately five times, apparently because Mr. Crowe was upset about a trail being recently added to 
Heman Park without consulting the Park Commission.  

The University City Police Department responded to 7210 Olive at approximately 8:38 a.m. that 
day, spoke with the Deputy Director, and conducted an investigation. When contacted by the Police 
Department by telephone that day, Mr. Crowe stated he approached the Deputy Director and asked, 
"Who's the idiot behind this?" because he knew the City Forester would not have approved the new 
trail, and he then walked away after exchanging words with the Deputy Director. The Police Department 
also interviewed a Parks Department maintenance employee who stated he witnessed the incident and 
heard the yelling but was unsure how many times Mr. Crowe touched the Deputy Director. The Deputy 
Director declined to prosecute.  

The Parks Director prepared a Memorandum, dated December 3, 2021, on the incident, 
including  the report from the Deputy Director and the Police Department Occurrence Report, 
containing additional details. 

Mr. Crowe provided a letter dated December 26, 2021 on the incident, admitting he approached 
the Deputy Director on November 19, 2021 and was “very upset” at three trees be believed  were 
harmed by construction of the trail, but denying he called the Deputy Director names or touched him. 

The City Manager reviewed and considered the allegations and evidence and recommends that 
the City Council remove James Crowe from the Park Commission for misconduct. Mr. Crowe has been 
notified of the recommendation and has been advised that he may present any information to the City 
Council before the February 28, 2022 meeting at 6:30 p.m. or in person at the meeting.  

K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



K - 3 - 1



 
 
January 26, 2022 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Application for Conditional Use Permit CUP 22-02 – The proposed use is for a 

warehouse that would exceed 50% of the total gross floor area of the premises. 
 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on January 26, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via video conference, 
the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by Andrew Waddell 
for a Conditional Use Permit to use the building at 8351 Olive Boulevard as a warehouse 
that would exceed 50% of the total gross floor area of the premises. 
 
By a vote of 7 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the 
application subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The storage areas of the building shall be subject to annual and random 
inspections by the Department of Community Development. 

 
 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

K - 3 - 2



 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING DATE:   February 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   CUP 22-02  
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3  
 
Location: 8351 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: Andrew Waddell 
 
Property Owner: Capri Launderers & Cleaners, Inc.   
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) The proposed use is 

for a warehouse that would exceed 50% of the total 
gross floor area of the premises. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval    [ X ] Approval with Conditions   [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 
A. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial    
Existing Land Use:   Commercial/Office 
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Commercial 

 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC   SR – Single-family Residential  
East:  GC   General Commercial  
South:  GC              General Commercial (South side of Olive Boulevard) 
West:  GC  General Commercial      

K - 3 - 3



Existing Property 
The existing property at 8351 Olive Boulevard is a 0.12-acre lot that contains a 
commercial building approximately 3,800 square-feet in size that was built in 1959. The 
property is zoned General Commercial and is surrounded to the east and the west along 
Olive Boulevard by lots that are also zoned General Commercial. Lots directly across 
Olive are also zoned GC. The properties behind this lot, to the north, are zoned “SR” 
Single-family Residential.  
 
Parcel Location and Surrounding Zoning 
 

 
 
Applicant’s Request 
Mr. Waddell has submitted a letter with his C.U.P. Application. The property was the 
location of a dry-cleaning business for several years. His decision to close the business 
was due to economic hardship. He would like to use this location – 8351 Olive – to store 
supplies and equipment for another dry-cleaning business in University City.  
 
Analysis 
A Conditional Use Permit in this instance is requited per the General Commercial District 
regulations, section §400.510 – Conditional Uses A(27): 
 

27. Warehouses associated with retail businesses, where the warehouse portion 
exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the total gross floor area; 

 
The Fire Department has been and will continue to be involved in the inspections and 
permitting process for this and all Commercial Occupancy Permits. The building was 
recently inspected by Fire Marshall Fred Kramer. He found the following items that need 
to be fixed before a permit will be issued:    

K - 3 - 4



1. Cover electrical boxes that have exposed wires 
2. Clear tires from aisles 
3. Repair or install exit lights and emergency lighting 
4. Remove wires in conduit hung from gas line in boiler room 
5. Fire extinguishers update 
6. Clear debris on outside of bldg. blocking rear door. 

 
Mr. Waddell has agreed to take care of these items prior to issuance of the permit. 

 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on January 26, 2022, the Applicant indicated that: 

1. Nothing flammable is being stored at this location. 
2. He owns another store in University City near the intersection of Olive Boulevard 

and North and South Road. 
3. Since the dry-cleaning business at this location closed due to a lack of business 

during the Pandemic, he has used this location as storage.   

The Plan Commission voted unanimously to approve the Conditional Use Permit for 
8351 Olive Boulevard. 
 
Staff Recommendation  
Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use of this building for a warehouse that would 
exceed 50% of the total gross floor area of the premises would not be detrimental to the 
surrounding area.  
 
Staff is recommending approval of the request, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The storage areas of the building shall be subject to annual and random 
inspections by the Department of Community Development. 

 
 

K - 3 - 5



K - 3 - 6



K - 3 - 7



K - 3 - 8



L - 1 - 1L - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY:      DATE:    
 
 
BILL NO:          ORDINANCE NO.___________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE VII OF THE TRAFFIC CODE, 
TO REVISE TRAFFIC REGULATION AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Schedule VII of the Traffic Code, of the University City Municipal Code is amended 
as provided herein. Language to be added to the Code is represented as highlighted. This 
Ordinance contemplates no revisions to the Code other than those so designated; any 
language or provisions from the Code omitted from this Ordinance remains in full force and 
effect.  
 
Section 2. Schedule VII Stop Intersections, Table VII-A Stop Intersections” of the Traffic Code 
is hereby amended to add the following line item: 
 
Stop Street   Cross Street    Stops 
Golf Course Drive  Alanson Drive   (Blank) 
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of the sections revised by this 
amendment nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 
Section 4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be punished in accordance with the provisions of the University City Municipal Code. 
 
Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED THIS________day of____________2022 

 
___________________________________  

    MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 

L - 1 - 2L - 1 - 2



 
STAFF REPORT  

 
MEETING DATE: January 12, 2022 
Requestor :  Area Resident 
Request:  Updated Traffic Control Configuration at Golf Course-Alanson inters. 
Attachments:  None 
 
 
Existing Conditions: 
 

 
 

Golf Course Dr. – Alanson Dr. intersection 
 
Request: 
To review and update the traffic control configuration at the Alanson Dr.-Golf Course Dr. 
intersection.  Consider Stop sign(s). 
 
Conclusion/Recommendation: 
 
This intersection is slightly skewed and sightlines are additionally impeded by grade at its 
northeast quadrant.  That’s the location where the current Yield signage also displays a 
plaque that reads “cross traffic does not stop”.  The current configuration with 2 Yield signs 
and a plaque referencing a stop condition is not compliant with the Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices (MUTCD) and it can be confusing to motorists. 
 
The Police Department has reviewed the request and listed 6 documented accidents on 
Alanson and Golf Course; however, only two of the reported incidents were documented at 

L - 1 - 3L - 1 - 3

http://www.ucitymo.org/


the intersection of these two streets.  The most recent incident was on 12/27/2021, and the 
one before that was in 2016. 
 
This intersection meets the Yield or Stop sign warrants per MUTCD in which it is an 
intersection of two minor streets where the intersection has more than three approaches and 
the ability to see conflicting traffic on an approach is not sufficient to allow a road user to stop 
or yield in compliance with the normal right-of-way rule if such stopping or yielding is 
necessary. 
 
Per the above condition meeting the warrant, the usage of a Yield sign would still be 
compliant with MUTCD; however, staff recommends the usage of Stop sign instead to allow 
for a better ability of observation from Golf Course Dr. of the conflicting traffic on Alanson Dr.  
This is especially true for the northeast quadrant of the intersection where the sightlines are 
limited.  The reciprocal side of the intersection on Golf Course Dr. would then also get a Stop 
sign.  Plaques on both signage indicating “cross traffic does not stop” could also help with 
awareness at the intersection. 
 
An additional possible step is to notify the area residents of this change and obtain any input 
as applicable.  The proposed Stop signage is not necessarily detrimental to curbside parking 
but in its immediate area, there may be additional requirements for no parking, if deemed 
necessary so some input from the area residents may shine some light onto how they would 
view this change. 

L - 1 - 4L - 1 - 4

http://www.ucitymo.org/


L - 2 - 1



  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
January 26, 2022 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation (SUB-01) 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on January 26, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via 
videoconference, the Plan Commission considered the application of Quick Trip 
Corporation for Final Plat Approval of a proposed major subdivision to consolidate the 
six lots associated with 7579 Olive Boulevard, site of the future Quick Trip store. 
 
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said major 
subdivision. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

L - 2 - 2



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING DATE:   February 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 22-01 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Location:    7579 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant:    Quick Trip Corporation 
 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation  
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant  
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use:  No change – Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:     GC – General Commercial / SR – Single-Family Residential 
East:     GC – General Commercial  
South:     GC – General Commercial / Office            
West:     GC – General Commercial             
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[ x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Record Plat and Legal Descriptions 
 
 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property is 2.02 acres in size and is currently vacant. There are six (6) 
parcels that are proposed to be consolidated into a single lot to accommodate the Quick 
Trip store, as outlined yellow in the figure on the next page. 
 
The Plan Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit for the Quick Trip on August 
26, 2021. The City Council subsequently approved the C.U.P on September 13, 2021. 
 
 L - 2 - 3



 

 
 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 
405.165 of the Subdivision regulations. The submitted application is consistent with the 
provisions of a “Minor Subdivision” with the exception that the total area of the tract is 
greater than two (2) acres in size.  
 
Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 and 405.390 of the 
Subdivision and Land Development Regulations.     
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on January 26, 2022, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation for the six (6) lots 
associated with 7579 Olive Boulevard, site of the future Quick Trip store. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Major 
Subdivision. 
 
 

 

Project 
Boundary  

L - 2 - 4



 
INTRODUCED BY: Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson DATE: February 14, 2022 
 
 
BILL NO.  9453       ORDINANCE NO.   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION  
OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS “7579 OLIVE BOULEVARD”  

 
 

WHEREAS, an application was submitted by Quick Trip Corporation on November 17, 
2021, for the approval of a final subdivision plat of a tract of land to be known as 7579 Olive 
Boulevard; and  
 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on January 26, 2022, the City Plan Commission reviewed the 
final plat for the major subdivision and determined that the final plat is in substantial compliance 
with the requirements of the University City Municipal Code and recommended to the City 
Council approval of the final plat; and 
 

WHEREAS, the final plat for the major subdivision application, including all required 
documents submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Attached, marked “Exhibit A”, and made a part hereof is a final subdivision 
plat of a tract of land to be known as “7579 Olive Boulevard”: Part of Lots 14 & 15, Mount 
Olive, Located in Section 3, Township 45 North, Range 6 East, St. Louis County, Missouri. 
 

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that the final plat for the major subdivision 
is in full compliance with the University City Municipal Code, including Sections 405.380 and 
405.390. Accordingly, the final plat for the major subdivision marked “Exhibit A” is hereby 
approved. 
 

Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the final plat for the major 
subdivision the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of 
University City. 
 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L - 2 - 5



PASSED and ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit A 

L - 2 - 6



 

Exhibit A 

L - 2 - 7



 

L - 2 - 8



M - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY:________________    DATE:__________ 
 
 
BILL NO.          ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, 
AMENDING SAID MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 
1004 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE FROM “GC” GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO 

“HR” HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the University City Municipal Code divides the City into several 
zoning districts, and regulates the character of buildings which may be erected in each of said districts, 
and the uses to which the buildings and premises located therein may be put; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission examined an amendment of the Official Zoning Map 
of the City which changes the classification of property at 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue from “GC” 
General Commercial District to “HR” High Density Residential District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission, in a meeting held via video conference on January 26, 
2022, considered said amendment and recommended to the City Council that it be enacted into an 
ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m., on March 14, 2022, was duly published in the St. Louis Countian, 
a newspaper of general circulation within said City on February 27, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City were 
duly heard and considered by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the Official 
Zoning Map, is hereby amended by amending the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning districts 
so as to change the classification of property at 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue from “GC” General 
Commercial District to “HR” High Density Residential District;  
 

Section 2. Said property at 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue, totaling 1.34 acres, has a St. Louis 
County locator number of 17J310690. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, 
nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 

M - 1 - 2



Section 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the 
University City Municipal Code. 
 

Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2022. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M - 1 - 3



EXHIBIT B – LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS FOR REZONING – 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue 

Locator Number  17J310690   

M - 1 - 4



  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
January 26, 2022 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Map Amendment – 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue (REZ-02) 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on January 26, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. via 
videoconference, the Plan Commission considered the application by Crossroads 
Realty, LLC to rezone 1.34 acres of land at 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue from General 
Commercial (GC) District to High Density Residential (HR) District, with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The redevelopment of the site shall meet the parking requirements for the 
number of units proposed; 

2. Additional parking spaces shall be constructed using permeable materials.  
3. A Landscape Plan shall be submitted for review and approval with the Site Plan. 

 
 
By a vote of 7 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said Map 
Amendment to the University City Official Zoning Map. 
 
 

 
 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

M - 1 - 5



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING DATE:   February 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   REZ 22-02 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  2 
 
Applicant: Crossroads Realty, LLC 
 
Location: 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue 
 
Request:  
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial District 
Proposed Zoning:   HR – High Density Residential District  
Existing Land Use:   Vacant building 
Proposed Land Use: Dwellings, elevator-type 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 
North:     GC – General Commercial   
East:      GC – General Commercial   
South:     GC – General Commercial   
West:      PA – Public Activity (Public Park) 
*See Zoning Map on Page 2 and Aerial photo on Page 3. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[ x ] Yes [  ] No  [  ] No reference 
 
PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [x ] Approval with Conditions in Resolution [  ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Map Amendment Application  
B. Project Floor Plans 

 
APPLICANT’S REQUEST 
The Applicant is requesting that the subject property be rezoned from a GC – General 
Commercial District to an HR – High-density Residential District to accommodate the 
development of 20 apartment units comprised of the following: 

M - 1 - 6



 Two (2) two-bedroom units; 
 Four (4) one=bedroom units; and 
 Fourteen (14) studio units. 

The Applicant is also proposing twelve (12) storage units in the building’s basement. 
Floor plans are included as an attachment to this report. 
 

 
 
Existing Property 
The existing building at 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue consists of one approximately 
26,517 square-foot, 3 story building that was built in 2948. It served as a VA clinic and 
shelter for many years. Prior to that, the building was a convent. The parcel is 
approximately 1.34 acres in size and is zoned General Commercial. The City’s Heman 
Park is located directly to the west, across Pennsylvania Avenue. St. Louis County lists 
the number of living units of the facility at forty-five (45). The Applicant is requesting less 
than half of that number – 20. 
 
The property was also the subject of a Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) application for a 
Sustainability Training and Residency Center in March of 2021.    
 
ANALYSIS 
Density  
Section 400.320 of the HR – High-Density Residential District regulations (Permitted 
Uses) designates a density limitation of 1.0 (“Dwellings, elevator-type, up to a F.A.R. of 
one (1.0)” Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.) is defined as the gross floor area of a building or 
multiple buildings on a zoning lot divided by the total area of such zoning lot. For this 
property and building in its current condition, the F.A.R. is 0.45. The Applicant’s plans 

M - 1 - 7



will affect the F.A.R. very little, if at all. It will certainly not approach the 1.0 limit 
designated in the Zoning Ordinance. Nonetheless, Staff will make sure this number 
does not vary much as the project evolves. 
 

 
 
Landscaping 
A Landscape Plan will be required as part of the Site Plan approval process. The 
proposed project benefits by the location of numerous mature trees on the site. While 
not all of the trees could likely be saved, given their condition and the need for 
additional parking for the facility, the Applicant is encouraged to retain as many as 
possible, while supplementing existing vegetation with an appropriate Landscape Plan.  
 
Vehicular Access 
The site is accessible primarily from Pennsylvania Avenue. There is another entrance 
off Olive Boulevard, which appears to have served as pick-up and drop-off location for 
past uses. All of the existing parking spaces are accessible from Pennsylvania Avenue. 
Public Works comments on the application indicated that the site may need a secondary 
access for providing emergency services. The Olive Boulevard access point would 
serve that purpose. The Fire Department will review the site plan and building permit 
application prior to approval.  
 
Parking 
The existing facility has twenty (20) dedicated parking spaces throughout the site 
accessible from Pennsylvania Avenue. With the 20 proposed dwelling units, 38 spaces 
would be required. There appears to be enough space on the property to accommodate 
the additional parking, should the Map Amendment be approved. The Applicant is 
aware of the need for additional parking. 
 

M - 1 - 8



Comprehensive Plan 
It is staff’s opinion that the proposed development is consistent with the goals and 
objectives of the University City Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005. Applicable 
sections from the Plan Update that support this opinion include: 

Chapter 3, of the Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005, under Land Use and 
Redevelopment, as a general policy, states, “The City will strongly support 
development(s) that promote desirable planning concepts such as neighborhood-
serving, mixed uses and transit-oriented development and enhance the pedestrian 
character of the City.” 
 
Redevelopment of this site as the Applicant proposes adheres to the Comprehensive 
Plan and “…promote(s) desirable planning concepts such as neighborhood-
serving…and transit-oriented development and enhance the pedestrian character of the 
City.” 
 
The proposed HR – High-Density Residential District zoning is also consistent with the 
Plan’s Proposed Land Use Map, showing 1004 Pennsylvania Avenue as “Multi-family,” 
as shown in a portion of the Map below. 
 

 
 
 
 

M - 1 - 9



Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on January 26, 2022, the Commission changed the 
language of the required parking from “38 spaces” to the number of spaces required by 
the Zoning Ordinance. The number could be reduced by 10% if the site can take 
advantage of being close to a public transit stop.  
The Commission also recommended that the additional parking spaces – beyond those 
that already exist – be constructed with permeable material. The Applicant agreed to 
these conditions. 
The Plan Commission voted unanimously to approve the Zoning Map Amendment for 
1004 Pennsylvania Avenue. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendation – Amended to reflect Plan Commission 
Based on this report’s analysis Staff recommends approval of the Applicant’s proposed 
Map Amendment with the following conditions: 
 

1. The redevelopment of the site shall meet the parking requirements for the 
number of units proposed; 

2. Additional parking spaces shall be constructed using permeable materials.  

3. A Landscape Plan shall be submitted for review and approval with the Site Plan. 

 
 

M - 1 - 10


	J1 - University City Police CBA 2022.pdf
	Blank Page

	J3 - RELOCATION ASSISTANCE  AGREEMENT - O'Hara, O.pdf
	University City Relocation Grant Invoice - Omar O'Hara.pdf
	February 18, 2022
	INVOICE
	Please make check payable to: Omar O’Hara



	J5 - Six Fortune - Termination of Easement - U_ City.pdf
	EXHIBIT A

	K1 - Removal Park Commissioner.pdf
	Blank Page

	K3 - City Council Packet - CUP 22-02 (8351 Olive).pdf
	PC Transmittal Letter, CUP 22-02 8351 Olive
	CC Staff Report_CUP 22-02 8351 Olive
	Application

	L2 - Bill 9453 - Quick Trip Plat (SUB-22-01) CC Packet - updated.pdf
	Letter of transmittal SUB-01
	SUB 22-01 QuickTrip (7579 Olive) CC Staff Report

	M1 - Map Amendment - 1004 Pennsylvania.pdf
	Staff Report.pdf
	Letter of transmittal REZ-02
	CC REZ 22-02 1004 Pennsylvania Ave. Staff Report





